
  
 

1.  GMCA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DECISION GM HOUSING INVESTMENT 
LOANS FUND - INVESTMENT APPROVAL (BURY MAGISTRATES COURT) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

KEY DECISION NOTICE 
 

(RECORDING OF DECISIONS MADE BY INDIVIDUALS) 

 
1. Decision Summary: 

 

 

Decision Maker Date of Decision 

 

Eamonn Boylan, Combined Authority Chief 
Executive 

 
 

13th January 2021 

 

In consultation with the Portfolio  Lead for 
Housing, Homelessness & Infrastructure 

 

Date Decision Published 
 
15th January 2021 

Date Decision will come into force 
 
 

Subject: 

GM Housing Investment Loans Fund – Investment Approval (Bury Magistrates Court) 

 
Type of Decision: 

 

Mayoral Decision  Non Mayoral 
Decision Made by 
Officers 

X 

 
2. Details of the Decision: 

 

 

The decision is that: 

 
1.   To approve a GM Housing Investment Loan Fund loan of £3.979m to Jubilee Estates Ltd 

for the construction of 39 apartments and 10 houses on the site of the former Bury 
Magistrates Court.   This represents an increase of £31k on the loan approved for the 
scheme by the Combined Authority in September 2020. 

2.   To delegate authority to the GMCA Treasurer acting in conjunction with the GMCA 
Monitoring Officer to prepare and effect the necessary legal agreements. 

 
 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



 

The reasons for the decision are: 

Approval  for  investment  in  the  Bury  Magistrates  Court  scheme  is  sought  in  line  with  the 
strategic objectives of the GMCA to increase the supply of housing in the GM area. 

Alternative options considered and rejected when making the decision: 

No increase in the investment approval resulting in delayed development. 

List Non-confidential reports 
Reports to be considered that can be made available to the public 

 

 
 

Part A Report accompanying this Key Decision Notice. 

List Confidential reports 
Reports to be considered which contain confidential or exempt information 

 
None. 

 
3. Conflict of Interest: 

 
Record of any conflict of interest declared by any Member who is consulted by the member 
or officer which related to the decision: 

None 

Dispensation granted by the Head of Paid Service in respect of any conflict of interest 
declared: 

N/A 

 
4. Register of Key Decisions: 

 
Register of Key Decisions 
Reference 

 

Or if not published in the Register of Key  

Page 2



Decisions - Reasons for general or special 
urgency such that it was not published in the 
Register of Key Decisions 

 
 
 

5. Scrutiny Call In: 

 
Call-in deadline     4:00 p.m. 21st January 2021 

Or if Exempt from Call-in explain how any 
delay would seriously prejudice the legal or 
financial position of the GMCA or the 
Constituent Councils, or the interests of the 
residents of Greater Manchester 

 

Scrutiny Chair 
who agreed the urgency 

 

 
6. Signature of Decision Maker/s: 

 
Position: Eammon Boylan, Chief Executive 

 

Signed:      
 

 
 

Date:  13th January 2021 

 
7.  For delegated decisions which are to be made in consultation with others please include: 

 
Name/s of politician/s or Officer/s who must 
be consulted (if any) 

Consultee signature: by signing this decision 
notice you confirm that you have been 
consulted on this decision 

Paul Dennett – Portfolio Lead Leader for 
Planning, Housing & Homelessness 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
NOTE: 

 
Decisions made by the Mayor will also be reported to the GMCA at its next meeting (except where 
the decision concerned was taken openly    by the Mayor while sitting within a formal meeting of 
the GMCA). 

 
Non Mayoral Decisions made by Officers will be available for public inspection at the GMCA's 
offices and on the GMCA's website. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

 

 

 
 
 
Date:   12 January 2021 
 
Subject: GM Housing Investment Loans Fund – Investment Approval Recommendation 

(Bury Magistrates Court) 
 
Report of: Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett, Portfolio Lead Leader for Housing, 

Homelessness and Infrastructure and Steve Rumbelow, Portfolio Lead Chief 
Executive for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure 

 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report requests that the GMCA Chief Executive, acting in consultation with the Portfolio Lead 
Leader for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure, exercise his powers contained in the GMCA 
Constitution Part 3 Section F paragraph 3.17 to approve an increase of less than 10% in the GM 
Housing Fund loan detailed in the recommendation below.  If the recommendation is approved, the 
decision will be reported to the next available meeting of the Combined Authority. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The GMCA Chief Executive Authority acting in consultation with the Portfolio Lead Leader for 
Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure is recommended to: 

 
1. Approve the GM Housing Investment Loans Fund loan detailed in the table below.  

 

BORROWER  SCHEME  DISTRICT  LOAN 

Jubilee Way Estates Ltd Bury Magistrates Court Bury £3.979m  

 
2. Delegate authority to the GMCA Treasurer acting in conjunction with the GMCA Monitoring 

Officer to prepare and effect the necessary legal agreements. 
 
CONTACT OFFICERS: 
 
Bill Enevoldson: bill.enevoldson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk 
Laura Blakey: laura.blakey@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 

 Housing Investment Fund (report to GMCA, 27 February 2015) 

 GM Housing Investment Loans Fund – Revised Investment Strategy (report to GMCA, 25 
October 2019) 

 

Page 5

mailto:bill.enevoldson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk
mailto:laura.blakey@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk


 

TRACKING/PROCESS  

Does this report relate to a major strategic decision, as set out in 
the GMCA Constitution  
 

YES 
 

EXEMPTION FROM CALL IN 

Are there any aspects in this report which 
means it should be considered to be exempt 
from call in by the relevant Scrutiny 
Committee on the grounds of urgency? 

NO 
 

TfGMC Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

  

 
Equalities Implications – not applicable  
Climate Change Impact Assessment and Mitigation Measures – not applicable  

Risk Management – see paragraph 3 

Legal Considerations – see paragraph 4 

Financial Consequences – Revenue – see paragraph 5 

Financial Consequences – Capital – see paragraph 6 

 
1. INTRODUCTION & OVERVIEW 
 
1.1 In line with the agreed governance process for the GM Housing Investment Loans Fund 

(“GMHILF” or “the Fund”), the GMCA Chief Executive, acting in consultation with the 
Portfolio Lead Leader for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure is asked to approve an 
increase in the loan detailed in section 2, which has been recommended for approval by the 
Fund’s Credit Committee. 

 
1.2 The total value of offers of loans from the Fund approved by the Combined Authority to date 

is £507.5m. and the total value of equity investments made by the Fund is £17m1.  If the 
recommendation set out in this report is agreed, the value of loan offers will increase to 
£507.6m.   

 
1.3 Affordable housing and section 106 agreements are dealt with at a local level in line with 

local policies, national planning legislation and the government’s National Planning Policy 
Framework. As agreed at the December 2018 meeting of the GMCA, the majority of the 
surpluses generated from the Fund will be ring fenced to support provision of additional 
housing affordable to GM residents, supporting the Mayor’s Town Centre Challenge and 
tackling issues such as rogue landlords, empty homes and improving standards within the 
Private Rented Sector.  

 
1.4 The GM Housing Vision was approved via the GMCA in January 2019. This sets the context 

for housing delivery within GM and paved the way for the GM Housing Strategy and revised 

                                                      
1 These figures exclude loan offers that have not been taken up and are therefore withdrawn. 

Page 6



 

GM Housing Investment Loans Fund Investment Strategy that were approved by GMCA in 
October 2019.  Alongside the launch of the GM Spatial Framework, the agreement to these 
strategic documents will be a pivotal point in shaping the way housing is brought forward 
across Greater Manchester and setting the objectives and focus of future investments made 
from the Fund. 

 
2. LOAN APPROVAL SOUGHT  
 
2.1 At its meeting in September 2020, the Combined Authority approved a loan of £3.948m to 

Jubilee Way Estates Limited for the development of 39 apartments and 10 houses at the 
former Bury Magistrates Court.  Following further due diligence, scheme costs have 
increased and the borrower is seeking a revised loan of £3.979m, an increase of £31k on the 
amount originally approved.   

 
3. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
3.1  The structure and security package proposed for the loan in order to mitigate risk remain 

unchanged from those set out in the proposals previously approved by the Combined 
Authority.  

 
3.2 The loan will be conditional upon a satisfactory outcome of detailed due diligence and 

ongoing confirmation from the Monitoring Surveyor acting on the Fund’s behalf that the 
scheme is being delivered satisfactorily. 

 
4. LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1 A detailed loan facility and other associated legal documentation will be completed ahead 

of the first loan payment. 
 
5.  FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES – REVENUE 
 
5.1 The borrower will be required to meet the Fund’s legal, due diligence and monitoring costs 

and there is no requirement for additional revenue expenditure by GMCA in addition to the 
approved Core Investment Team budget. 

 
6. FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES – CAPITAL  
 
6.1 The loan will be sourced from the £300m GM Housing Investment Loans Fund, including the 

recycling of loans repaid to the Fund. 
 
7. RECOMMENDATION  
 
7.1 The GMCA Chief Executive acting in consultation with the Portfolio Lead Leader for Housing, 

Homelessness and Infrastructure is recommended to approve the increase in the loan as set 
out in this report.  

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 GMCA Chief Executive Officer Decision GM Housing Investment Loans Fund - Investment Approval (Bury Magistrates Court)
	GMHILF - Bury Magistrates Court Part A


